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SECTION  SF 30 BLOCK 14 CONTINUATION PAGE 

RESPONSES TO TWELVE (12) QUESTIONS, PERTAINING TO 1 OCT 01 SUBMITTALS: PAST PERFORMANCE DATA & TOTAL COMPENSATION PLAN (posted to the SETAC Webpage on 27 Sep 01)

Question #1:  Section L, Special Instructions for Preparation of Proposals, Item c (8), Page 68 of 82 – The specific information to be provided in the SOW cross-reference table in not clear. First, which specific sections of the SOW should be referenced? Only Sections 1.1.1.1 through 1.1.1.7, or others as well? Also, how should the SOW be cross-referenced to the information in Tab G (Total Compensation Plan) and Tab H (Past Performance), which is only a spreadsheet?

Question #2:  Section L, SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS FOR PREPARATION OF PROPOSALS, c(8), refers to Vol. V and Vol. II Tabs A, F, G, and H as requiring a single cross-reference table to the SOW.  Is the inclusion of Vol. II TAB G correct?  This Tab contains the Total Compensation Plans for the companies that compose the CSC Team and responds to the instructions in  Section L , page 73, (j).

Question #3:  In Section L, under SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS FOR PREPARATION OF PROPOSALS, Paragraph "c, (8)" states "In proposal Volume V, as well as TABs A, F, G, and H of Volume II, a single cross-reference table to the statement of work (SOW) is required, ..."  The reference to Tab G appears inappropriate since it is the Total Compensation Plan for SETAC Employees.  Does paragraph c, (8) correctly identify the Tabs in Vol. 2 that must contain a SOW cross-reference table?

Answer - Questions #1, 2 & 3, above:  Tab G should not be included in this requirement.  Tab H should contain cross-reference to all sections of the SOW as applicable.

Question #4:  The RFP indicates we may use email to forward the Total Compensation Plan and Past Performance deliverables.  Is a hard copy deliverable necessary or will email work for you?

Answer – Question #4, above:  Either hard copy or email is acceptable.

Question #5:  Past Performance Information and Spreadsheet (page 73, paragraph (k)).  As part of the past performance spreadsheet, offerors are required to include “Government Points of Contact (Technical, Management, and Contractual).”  We assume the COTR to be the Government Technical POC, and the PCO and ACO to be the Government Contract POCs.  Who do you consider to be the Government “Management” POC?

Answer – Question #5, above:  Those personnel who have responsibility for and knowledge of performance under the contracts listed.  (Note:  These may be Technical, Management, and/or Contractual personnel depending on your effort.  These are the same POCs that you will be sending your past performance evaluation forms to.)

Question #6:  In Section L, under SEQUENCE OF EVENTS DURING PROPOSAL

EVALUATION, Paragraph "a" on page 65 states that "All Past Performance Data and the Total Compensation Plan for the SETAC Team shall be submitted not later than 1 Oct 01."  It is assumed that Past Performance Data pertains to the completed Past Performance Questionnaires. However, Attachment 4, Past Performance Questionnaire -

Cover Letter, states "...return to this office as soon as possible, but not later than COB 10 Oct 01."  Which is the correct suspense date for returning the questionnaires?

Answer – Question #6, above:  The list of seven (7) contracts or subcontracts is due on 1 Oct 01.  The Past Performance Evaluation Forms/Letters from Government Points of Contact are due on 10 Oct 01. 

Question #7:  Section L, Volume II Management Proposal, Item (j) Total Compensation Plan for SETAC Employees, Page 73 or 82 – It is assumed based on other portions of the RFP that the term “Team Member” implies something more than a traditional subcontractor relationship. However, we have found no delineation between major subcontractors and normal subcontractors. Is this delineation left to the prime’s discretion, or are there specific factors that should be used to draw this distinction?

Question #8:  L.e.(2)(j)  Total Compensation Plan for SETAC Employees.  The parenthetical note in this paragraph states “Limit 3 pages per proposed team member/major subcontractor.”  Should “direct labor rates, fringe benefits, etc.” be provided for all subcontractors, or only major subcontractors?  What is the definition of “major” subcontractor?

Question #9:  Page 73 - In Paragraph (j), please explain what is meant by "Major Subcontractor." We regard all of our team members as subcontractors. How do we determine which ones are "major" subcontractors?
Answer – Question #7, 8 and 9, above:  Data required for the compensation plan should be provided for major subcontractors only.  It is left to the primes discretion as to who is and is not a major subcontractor.

Question #10:  Page 73 - In Paragraph (k), you state that the 7 contracts/major subcontracts may be spread among formal team members or Joint Venture partners. Since our team simply consists of the Prime and a set of subcontractors (i.e., no formal team members and no Joint Venture arrangement), is it correct to assume that all 7 contracts should be Prime contracts?

Answer – Question #10, above:  Yes.

Question #11:  Reference: Section L, Special Instructions for Preparation of Proposals, Paragraph d.(2)(j).   Is it acceptable to submit team members Total Compensation Plans in sealed envelopes because of proprietary information normally contained in these plans?

Answer – Question #11, above:  Yes.

Question #12:  Reference:  RFP Section L, Sequence of Events During Proposal Evaluation, paragraph a., (Page 65).  Offerors are requested to provide all Past Performance Data and the Total Compensation Plan for the SETAC Team NLT 1 October 2001.  (a) How does the Government want these items submitted - Hard Copies, CDs or Hard Copies and CDs?  (b) How many copies of each are we to provide the Government?  (c) Is there a page limit? If yes, what are the limits for the Past Performance Data (PPD) and the Total Compensation Plan (TCP)? Are they the same as stated for Volume II – Tab G - TCP (Limit 3 pages per proposed team member/major subcontractor) and Volume II Tab H – PPD (Limit 2 pages for spreadsheet)?  (d)  If there is a page limit, are the title page, table of content, list of figures, list of tables and acronyms included in the page count?  (e) Will a cross-reference table to the statement of work (SOW) be required for the PPD? If yes, will it be included in the stated page limitations, if any?

Answer – Question 12a, above:  Either hardcopy or CD is acceptable.  Both are not required.

Answer – Question 12b, above:  One.

Answer – Question 12c, above:  Yes.  The page limits are as stated in the RFP sections for Tab G and Tab H.

Answer – Question 12 d, above:  No.  Such pages are not included in the page limit.

Answer – Question 12e, above.  Yes.  See answer to Questions 1, 2 and 3, above.

RESPONSES TO THE FIFTY-SEVEN (57) GENERAL RFP QUESTIONS (posted to the SETAC Webpage on 5 Oct 01)

Question #1. Section L, page 76, (5) VOLUME V - SAMPLE TASK ORDER (T/O) PROPOSAL, provides for a limit of 60 slides for the volume or a total of 15 per sample task.  The Sample Task Requirement Packages limit the briefing charts to 10 hard copy charts for a total 40.  Is this inconsistent or is the additional 20 charts to be used for some other purpose?

Question #2.  Volume V - Sample Task Order (T/O) Proposal (reference RFP page 76 paragraph (5)(b) and individual Sample Task Order Requirements).  Our understanding of the Government’s intent, as stated at the 27 July 2001 Industry Day, was that a total number of slides for this portion of the proposal would be provided, with the allocation of specific numbers of slides per task to be at the offerors discretion.  If this remains the Government’s intent, suggest that the “NTE 10 pages” be removed from the individual Sample Task Order Requirements.

Question #3.  "Reference:  (a) Section L, page 76, Special Instructions for Preparation of Proposals, d. Volume Descriptions, Paragraph (5) Volume V - Sample Task Order (T/O) Proposal, (b), and (b) Sample Task Order Requirements Package (T/ORP) #1, #2, #3, and #4.  Reference (a) states that there is a 60 slide limit to the sample task response volume, Vol. V, however each of the T/ORPs states that there is a "NTE 10 pages" limit (which would indicate a 40 page limit).  This appears to be inconsistent.  Does Vol. V have a 60 slide limit, or a 40 page limit?  If there is a 60 slide limit, is there information that is expected in Vol. V in addition to the T/ORP response?"

Question #4.  Sample Task Order Response Page Limitations.  Section L states that the total page limit on all sample task order responses is 60 slides.  However, the individual Sample T/ORPs in Attachments 5–8 state that each one is limited to 10 pages, which would total only 40 slides.  Which is correct?  Also, at the 27 Jul 01 SETAC Industry Conference, it was implied that the offeror could determine the number of slides for each T/ORP as long as the total did not exceed the limit.  Please clarify.

Question #5.  Section L, Volume V Sample Task Order Proposal, Item (5) (b) page 76 of 82 and Attachments 5-8 – Section L page 76 states that the page limit for Volume V, Sample Task Order Proposal shall be 60 slides. However, Attachments 5-8 state that the page limit for each Sample Task response is not to exceed 10 pages, which totals 40 pages for all four Sample Tasks. Please clarify.

Question #6.    Reference: Section L, Special Instructions for Preparation of Proposals, Paragraph d.(5)(b). There is a specified limit of 60 slides.  Each Sample T/ORP has a NTE limit of 10 slides.  Please clarify the difference. 

Question #7.  Reference:      Section L, Special Instructions for Preparation of Proposals, d(5)(b) (Page 76) and Sample Task Attachments 5, 6, 7, and 8 “Responses Due/Special Instructions”.  

a. In the Section L reference, the instructions for the sample task briefings places a not to exceed limit of 60 slides for the four sample tasks.   However, Attachments 5, 6, 7, and 8 “Responses Due/Special Instructions”, a NTE limit of 10 slides for each of the sample tasks is specified.  This makes for a total of 40 charts.  What is sample task chart limit?  We suggest a maximum of 60 charts and that the number of charts per sample task be at the discretion of the offeror.
b. Given a sample task chart limitation, will sample task title slides be considered as part of the chart limit? 
Answer - Questions #1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7a, above:  A solicitation amendment will be issued to revise the sample tasks to allow the offeror to determine the number of charts required for each individual task.  The total number of charts will remain at 60. 

Answer – Question #7b, above: Yes.

Question #8. Section L, SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS FOR PREPARATION OF PROPOSALS, c(9), fourth sentence down uses the words  "Appendix".  Should this be "TABS"?   

Answer - Question #8, above:  A solicitation amendment will be issued to revise the word “Appendix” to read “Tab”.

Question #9.  Page 7 - You list Illustrator/Graphics/Tech Writer III twice. Did you mean for the 2nd one to be Illustrator/Graphics/Tech Writer IV?

Question #10.  Pages 6-7 – Government Labor Categories and Associated Fixed Prices Per DPPH.  In the list of categories, the last category – Illustrator/Graphics/Tech Writer III is listed twice. Assume the last listing (second listing) of that category should be a level IV. Is this a correct assumption?

Answer – Question #9 and 10, above: A solicitation amendment will be issued to revise the 2nd “Illustrator/Graphics/Tech Writer III” to read “Illustrator/Graphics/Tech Writer IV”.

Question #11.  Page 7 - There appears to be an alignment problem with the "NA" indications at the top of the page. Is it correct that all of the "NA" indications belong in the "Government Site" column?

Question #12.  Section B, page 7, labor categories Typist/Secretary I and Illustrator/Graphics/Tech Writer III have "N/A" in the Contractor Site column.  Is this an error and the "N/A's" should really be in the Government Site column?

Question #13. Pages 6-7 – Government Labor Categories and Associated Fixed Prices Per DPPH.  In this same section, Typist/Secretary I and Illustrator/Graphics/Tech Writer IV (based on the previous assumption) are listed as N/A under Contractor Site. Assume these categories should have been listed as N/A under the Government Site instead to be consistent with the other levels of those respective categories. Is this a correct assumption?

Answer – Questions #11, 12 and 13, above: Yes the “N/As” should all be in the Government-Site column, however during the Standard Procurement System’s “generation” of the document, the “columns” do not always stay properly aligned.  When we issue the solicitation amendment, we will attempt to re-align the “N/As” correctly.

Question #14.   Section L, page 68, paragraph (b)(2) says to calculate the total price for CLINs 0001-0007.  CLIN 0007 is the First Award Term Period.  Should paragraph (b)(2) only be for CLINs 0001-0006?

Question #15.  Section B, CLIN “Max Amounts” and Section L, Special Instructions for Proposal Preparation, b(2).  Should the specified CLINS be 0001 through 0008 versus 0001 through 0007?

Answer – Questions #14 and 15, above: A solicitation amendment will be issued to revise paragraph (b)(2) from as reads “CLINS 0001 thru 0007” to read “CLINs 0001 thru 0008”.

Question #16.   Section L, page 73, paragraph (K) says past performance information and spreadsheet is tab H and paragraph (L) says SCI billets are also tab H. Are we correct to assume this is a typographical error and SCI billet information should be submitted under tab (I)?

Question #17.  Billets for SCI Personnel (reference RFP page 73, paragraph (l)).  Should this section be renamed as “Tab I”?

Question #18.  Volume II, paragraphs (k) and (l).  Paragraph (k) calls out the Past Performance Information and Spreadsheet as “Tab H” and paragraph (l) call out the Billets for SCI Personnel as “Tab H” also.  Should the Billets be under “Tab I”?

Question #19.  QUESTION:  On page 73 of the RFP, there are two TAB H's listed.  I assume that the "second" TAB H should be TAB I.  Am I correct?

Question #20.  Section L, Volume II Management Proposal, Items (k) and (l), Page 73 or 82 – Both 7paragraphs (k) Past Performance Information and Spreadsheet, and (l) Billets for SCI Personnel are called out as Tab H. Did you intend for (l) Billets for SCI Personnel to be Tab I?

Question #21.  Reference: Section L, Special Instructions for Preparation of Proposals, Paragraph d.(2)(l). Question:  Billets for SCI personnel, Tab H is currently specified.  Should this be Tab I?

Question #22.  Reference:   Section L, Special Instructions for Preparation of Proposals, d (2)(k) and (l),Past Performance Information and Spreadsheet – (TAB H) and Billets for SCI Personnel – (TAB H) (Page 73).  Section L is identifying both the “Past Performance Information and Spreadsheet” requirement and the “Billets for SCI Personnel” requirement as TAB H.  Please clarify if both requirements are to be placed in TAB H of the Offeror’s Proposal to be delivered on 1 October 01.  Should the second Tab H, SCI Billets, be Tab I?

Answer – Questions #16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21 and 22, above: A solicitation amendment will be issued to revise the 2nd “TAB H” to read “TAB I”.

Question #23. If there is no OCI concern (no subject contracts), does an offeror have to make a statement to SMDC to that effect?  We will certainly ask our subs to state it to us, as a backup.

Question #23.  If an OCI evaluation is conducted based on response to above and a determination is made for no risk, is the mitigation plan still required?   Corollary: Are there circumstances the plan would not be required for the RFP?

Answer – Question #23, above: Negative responses are not required if current conflicts do not exist.  However, since “Risk Mitigation” pertains to mitigation of risks during performance, a “Risk Mitigation” plan is required with proposal submission in accordance with “Special Instructions for Preparation of Proposals”, paragraph d(2)(h).

Question #24. How and how soon does SMDC intend to notify offerors of their approval or disapproval.

 

Answer – Question #24, above: OCI reviews are in process.  Individual responses will be issued as soon as possible.

Question #25.  Reference Volume I Instructions (pages 69 and 70) and Section entitled “Instructions for the Completion of Solicitation Part I – The Schedule” pages 67 and 68.  

Instructions for Volume I state that: “The general volume will consist of the actual offer (prepared in accordance with ‘INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE COMPLETION OF SOLICITATION PART I – THE SCHEDULE’).”  Instructions for Volume I also sate that “Price information shall not be included in this document.”

The "INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE COMPLETION OF SOLICTATION PART I – THE SCHEUDLE” requires that the fixed prices per labor category be utilized to calculate the total price for CLINS 0001 – 0007.  The instructions state that the offeror “provide the calculation of the “estimated dollar value” on a separate sheet of paper directly behind the SF 33.”  These instructions appear to be contradictory, please clarify. 

Answer – Question #25, above: The “General Volume” consists of (1) the actual Offer, (2) the Table of Contents, (3) the Executive Summary and (4) other items including the “fill-in” documentation required by the RFP.  The sentence which excludes price information is referring specifically to the Executive Summary portion of the “General Volume”.

Question #26.  Volume Descriptions: (4) Volume IV – Price Proposal (reference paragraph (4)(a) on page 74).  The second bullet of paragraph (4)(a) requires that the offeror provide “Anticipated percentage of total SETAC effort allocated to each subcontractor.”  The Draft RFP requirement had been for the “Anticipated dollar amount of each subcontract”.  The requirement to present anticipated percentages of total SETAC effort allocated to each subcontractor appears to be in conflict with an ID/IQ task order contract.  As stated in paragraph 1.1.2 of the SOW, “programs are continually changing based on evolving technology, new doctrine, and changing government emphasis.”  Suggest this requirement be deleted or that the requirement change to the Draft RFP language of “anticipated dollar amount of each subcontract.”

Question #27.  Reference:  Section L, Special Instructions for Preparation of Proposals, d.(4) Price Proposal, (a) second bullet (Anticipated Subcontract %).  We request that this requirement be deleted.  Because of the uncertainty of the number and value of orders a contractor may receive under this IDIQ, competitive task order contract, it is difficult to estimate the percent of effort each subcontractor is targeted to receive.  

Answer – Questions #26 and 27, above: No.  The request for proposal requirement for a subcontractor percentage remains unchanged.  The purpose of this requirement is to demonstrate how, if the prime contractor has “X number” teammembers and/or subcontractors, the prime estimates the division of work after award?

Question #28.  L.e.(2)(c/d)  Pre-Recorded Presentation Topics.  Should we include facilities information on the prime contractor only or on all team members?  The fourth bullet under “Facilities” (approx percentage of prime contractor personnel located in each location) implies that we should include only prime contractor data.  Also, under “Personnel,” should we include security clearance information on the prime contractor only or on all team members?

Answer – Question #28, above: The facilities addressed should include any location or locations where the Prime intends to have SETAC effort completed, whether prime only personnel or a combination of prime/teammates/subcontractors.  As for the security information, the offeror shall include all personnel (prime, subcontractor, or team members) necessary to demonstrate capability to perform the contract and that, if successful, anticipates requesting to hold a billet on the resultant contract.

Question #29.  Page 63, Materials and Contractor Facilitization.  "..the Materials CLIN of this contract only allows for the purchase of consumable materials, STE, and materials required to fabricate a deliverable end-item for the Government.  All such materials that are direct charged to the contract/task order requires the prior written approval of the SETAC Contracting Officer." (emphasis added) Does the Government wish to add a dollar threshold – below which approval is not necessary?  For example, consumable materials under $100/each could be exempt from prior written approval.

Answer – Question #29, above: No.  The need for any such threshold will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis and stated in the task order, if applicable.

Question #30.  Page 71, Volume II Management/Technical Proposal, TAB B, Transition-In Plan.  "This plan shall not include cost data." AND Page 74, Volume IV Price Proposal "(a) Anticipated start date, if other than 24 Apr 02".  Where do costs for the Transition Period (January 1, 2002 – April 23, 2002) go?  Volume IV appears to ask only for the main contract period.

Answer – Question #30, above: The Government is not anticipating costs associated with transitioning.  If applicable, costs associated with transfer of Special Test Equipment (STE) or other Government Furnished Equipment (GFE) will be covered either under the current task order or the newly issued task order requiring such transfer.  The purpose of the transition plan is to demonstrate the offeror’s understanding of the magnitude of the overall requirements during transition between an incumbent and the new contractor.

Question #31.  Page 22, Direct Labor Overhead Ceiling Rate (%) for Contractor Fiscal Year.  Why is this necessary?  The labor rates are fixed and cannot change regardless of what the overhead rate may do?

Question #32.  Related to page 22 of 82 - since you have not asked for a material and subcontractor overhead ceiling rate, can we assume that there is no ceiling for recovery of this indirect cost under CLINs 0003, 0004, and 0006?

Answer – Questions #31 and 32, above: As stated in the RFP clause referenced above, these ceilings apply to reimbursable CLINs only.  The overhead rate proposed by the prime will be applied to all costs associated with the reimbursable CLINs.

Question #33.  Section IV. Award-Term Processes – d. End-of-Period Evaluations – last sentence "...the contracting officer issues the appropriate contract document...authorizing award extension or reduction reflecting the earned award-term amount."  (emphasis added) How will the Government reduce an award term? Will prior awarded terms be subject to reductions?  

Answer – Question #33, above: The Government may reduce unearned award terms if the contractor does not perform to the standards stated in the plan.  Once an award term is awarded, it will not be reduced.

Question #34.  Do the experience requirements in the labor category matrix apply to the

lowest degree requirements?  Notes 2 and 4 are invoked for the first 5 labor categories and these notes are inconsistent with each other.

Answer – Question #34, above: The “1, 2 and 4” notes apply to all categories and all levels under the first broad degree required block (i.e., Engineer, Analyst, Production Engineer, Programmer and Senior Principal Investigator).

Question #35.  Note 2 is not applicable to the Sr Mgt/Tech Staff category.  Does this mean that a PhD degree can not be substituted for an MS and 2 year of experience?

Answer – Question #35, above: Such substitution is not allowable for this category.

Question #36.  On page 63 of 82 - The disclosure statement required here exceeds the 255 character limitation for page footers imposed by MS Excel.  How do we handle putting this footer in our cost proposal since Page 69 of 82 requires use of MS excel for price data.  Can we use the FAR disclosure statement in lieu of the excessively lengthy RFP statement or a some type of reference to the long version on the title page?

Question #37.  Reference: Section L, Disclosure of Proposal, Paragraph a.  Question:  Can offerors put the required legend on the cover page only and then make reference to it in the footer of subsequent pages? 

Answer – Questions #36 and 37, above: Offerors are required to insert the legend at the bottom of all “specifically covered” pages.  This legend should not be used generically, but should be utilized only on the title page and “specifically covered” pages of the proposal.  This requires a the offeror to make a specific determination as to which pages require the legend vs. automatic use of software that inserts a footnote on each page. 

Question #38. SOW, Section 4.0, there are two paragraphs numbered 4.1.4.  Should the last paragraph of this section be 4.1.5?

Answer - Question #38, above:  Yes.  A solicitation amendment will be issued to renumber the 2nd paragraph “4.1.4” to read “4.1.5”.

Question #39.  Section C, Statement of Work, paragraph b, Page 7 of 82 – Recommend the RFP be modified to include the current OPM/Civil Service High Cost Areas along with the corresponding differential.

Answer - Question #39, above:  (Note, the correct section to be referenced for this question is “Section B”.)  As stated in the RFP, other sites may be added during contract performance as deemed necessary by the Contracting Officer.

Question #40.  Section C, Statement of Work, Page, 10 of 82, Paragraph 3.1.4 – Recommend “...contractor shall require....” employees to pursue membership in all frequent flyer mileage programs to read “...contractor shall encourage....” employees...  .    Furthermore, recommend that the last sentence be deleted to bring paragraph 3.1.4 inline with JTR/General Account Office Rules on use of Frequent Flyer Miles by employees on official travel.

Answer - Question #40, above:  No.  The RFP requirements remain unchanged.

Question #41.  Section L – It appears that the term “Team Member” has specific meaning on this contract related to affiliation rules for small businesses. For large businesses competing in the Full and Open competition who are not proposing as a JV, is the term “Team Member” appropriate when referencing subcontractors that have signed teaming agreements, or are these more appropriately termed subcontractors?

Answer - Question #41, above:  The only time that the distinction between the two terms is an issue is when the affiliation rules apply (i.e., in the case of Hub Zone, 8a, or Small Business Set-Aside awards).  Otherwise, the offeror may refer to the subcontractors by either term.

Question #42.  Section L, Special Instructions for Preparation of Proposals, Item c (4), Page 68 of 82 – We understand that the font size for the written portions of the proposal shall be equivalent to Times New Roman 10 point or larger. Does the 10 point restriction include tables, figures, charts, and graphics? We recommend allowing 8 point or larger text in tables, figures, charts, and graphics.

Answer - Question #42, above:  The limitations for written portions, graphs, charts, etc. are spelled out specifically in the RFP and will  remain as stated in the RFP; the font sizes for the charts were determined and mandated based on previous experience related to the oral presentation viewing requirements.

Question #43.  Section L, Volume IV Price Proposal, Item (f) page 75 of 82 – This paragraph states that '”the price proposal shall be completely detailed and itemized, in accordance with the provision of this section entitled ‘Instructions for Submission of a Contract Pricing Proposal When Other Than Cost or Pricing Data Are Required’. “ The referenced section cannot be found in the RFP. Please clarify.

Answer - Question #43, above:  See Section L, Clauses Incorporated by Reference, FAR 52.215-20.

Question #44.  Section L, Volume V Sample Task Order Proposal, Item (5) (a) page 76 of 82– The RFP states that the sample task order responses should present "labor mix, materials, and travel, including associated costs.” We understand that the hours per labor category, required supplies, and specifics concerning number of trips and locations should be presented in the slides. However, should the associated costs be shown in the briefing charts, or should they be included in the Price Volume?

Answer - Question #44, above:  All price/cost information related to the Sample Task Orders shall be included only in that volume (i.e., on the presentation charts).  The pricing information in the Price Volume relates to the proposal/resultant contract as a whole.

Question #45. Reference: Section L, Special Instructions for Preparation of Proposals, Paragraph c.(8). The table showing volume specifications under the page limitations column, references “e. Below”.  Should this reference be “d”? 

Question #46.  Reference: Section L, Special Instructions for Preparation of Proposals, c(8) General,  (Page 69). In the table in this section should the Page Limitation reference be “See d below” versus “See e below”?

Answer - Questions #45 and 46, above:  Yes.  A solicitation amendment will be issued to revise the “e” to read “d”.

Question #47.    Reference: Section L, Special Instructions for Preparation of Proposals, Paragraph d.(2)(a). Question:  We interpret the statements that the “…management/ technical proposal shall be separated by the tabs as shown” and that the “…proposal shall contain a description of the contractors approach to complete all the requirements of the SOW” to mean that the material at the Tabs fulfill the entire requirement for the management/technical volume. Is there a requirement to provide a written response other than the material at the Tabs for that volume?

Answer - Question #47, above:  No additional information other than that specifically stated in Section L of the RFP is required.

Question #48.    Reference: Section L, Special Instructions for Preparation of Proposals, Paragraph d.(5)(b).  Question:  In Volume V, is there a requirement to provide a written response to the sample task orders other than the slides?

Answer - Question #48, above:  No.

Question #49.
Reference:  Instructions for Preparation of Proposals, subparagraphs c.(8) Table, and c.(9) on page 69:  In the bottom entry of the Table on page 69, instructions require delivery of “two (2) copies of computer disks that have narrative of the total proposal….”.  Subparagraph c.(9) on that same page requires that “The narrative portions shall be in Microsoft Word….”

(a) Does the Government desire submittal (in MS Word on the computer disks) of the “script” words spoken during the video of the pre-recorded presentation?

 (b) Because of potential audio and video clarity challenges during replay of the pre-recorded presentation, will the Government allow submittal of the “script” as “facing page text”  in the 11 hard copies of the briefing charts?

Answer - Questions #49 a and b, above:  No.

Question #50.  Question: In the SETAC RFP, sample task # 2 refers to "the center" and "the center director". Which center is this?

Answer - Question #50, above:  This is a fictitious “Center” versus an actual center.  The purpose of the sample task order is for the offeror to demonstrate their ability to plan for the type(s) of SETAC support necessary for a generic Government “Center” versus one that is currently operational.

Question #51.  Reference:  RFP Section L, Sequence of Events…,b, Offeror Responsibility, second bullet. (Page 65)  This section requirement requires “The contractor shall provide evidence of a current Top Secret Facility Clearance or demonstrate the capability for immediate adjudication to obtain a Top Secret Facility Clearance.  Please identify where in the proposal should the contractor provide evidence of a current TS Facility Clearance.  We suggest providing a copy of the contractor’s DSS TS Approval Letter under the “Billets for SCI Personnel” – (TAB H) requirement.

Answer - Questions #51, above: Yes, this is the appropriate documentation and location for this requirement, however, the tab should be Tab I (see the answer to questions #16 through 22, above).

Question #52.  Reference:  Section B, Award Term CLINs; Section F, Period of Performance; Section H, Award Term Incentive; and Exhibit 1, Award Term Plan (Pages 5, 13 and 17 respectively). We respectfully request the government reconsider incorporating award term provisions into the RFP/contract.  Specifically we recommend the removal of the Award Term CLINs 0007 and 0008, the Section H Clause and Exhibit 1.  We also suggest that CLIN 0001 and the associated other Cost Type CLINs allow for a five year (multiple year) contract requiring that Section F, Period of Performance be modified to reflect a 60 month performance period. 

While we understood the rationale for award term provisions in the DRFP’s ten year contracts (2 – five year successive contracts), we believe that an award term contract with a maximum period of five years is onerous and administratively burdensome, especially to the PCO and her staff.  It also will require additional Task Order cost segregations among CLINs (base CLIN and the two award term CLINs) in an already complex contract, thereby making the funding and expenditure reconciliation process among DCAA, the ACO, the PCO, the contractor, and DFAS even more difficult.

Answer – Question #52, above: The RFP requirements will remain unchanged.

Question #53.  Reference:  Section L, Special Instructions for Preparation of Proposals, d(2)(f) Tab C4 (Page 72) and Attachment 3, SB Team Checklist.  We request that the Checklist requirement to send all team agreements be deleted. Instead, we suggest that Small Business (SB) offerors only be required to submit a relevant example of its Small Business Teaming Agreement(s).  While basically the same agreement, we have a separate teaming agreement with each SB team member resulting from the individual negotiations occurring between the prime and each team member.  On average, each agreement is about 10 pages in length.  To provide a copy of all team agreements would cause us to exceed the page limit of 30 pages.  

Answer – Question #53, above:  One of the significant purposes of this requirement is not only to present the total team membership, but to allow the Government to make a determination relative to the capability of the proposed “team” to perform the SETAC program successfully within the restrictions of the Limitation on Subcontracting clause that would be incorporated into any resultant contract.  If this demonstration is possible by providing only the sample agreement and the signature pages of the actual agreements OR the sample agreement and one mini-agreement, including a reference to the specific Small Business Teaming Agreement previously signed, signed by the prime and all proposed Team Members, such is acceptable to the Government. 

Question #54.  Reference:  Section L, Special Instructions for Preparation of Proposals, d.(1), Vol I-General, Page Limitation-5 pages (Pages 69 and 70).  We suggest the page limitation also exclude the Table of Contents and Acronym Listing.

Answer – Question #54, above: Such pages (title page, table of content, list of figures, list of tables and acronyms) are not included in the page limit.  The RFP amendment will include these exceptions as well as those already stated.

Question #55.  Reference:  Exhibit II, CDRL A002, Status Report, Blocks 12, 13, and 16.  Because the Status Report deliverable appears to be as required in a task order per Blocks 12 and 13, we suggest that the second and third paragraphs in Block 16 be deleted as they indicate quarterly submissions.

Answer – Question #55, above: The Government will re-look at the CDRL requirements before incorporating them into the final contracts.

Question #56.  To clarify, the total compensation plan is Tab G, do we submit this on 1 October and again with our final written proposal?

Answer – Question #56, above: Resubmission is not necessary.

Question #57.  Request the following clarification on Sample Task 4 of the SETAC RFP:   Task 1.0 in Sample Task 4 states:  "The contractor shall provide engineering support to perform systems analysis, systems integration, and technical analysis of advanced sensor technologies as related to discriminating interceptor technology program tasks, and Advanced Program Sensors."  Tasks 2.0 thru 4.0 are to support these efforts in different ways.  The term "Advanced Program Sensors" is unfamiliar. Did the government intend a generic statement referring to advanced sensor programs or is it referring to an actual program entitled "Advanced Program Sensors"?

Answer – Question #57, above: This is a generic term versus an actual program.

SUMMARY OF CHANGES TO RFP

Changes in Section B (shown in BOLD below)

GOVERNMENT LABOR CATEGORIES AND ASSOCIATED FIXED PRICES PER DPPH:

    a.  The following fixed prices per DPPH are applicable for contract performance, as ordered by properly executed task orders hereunder:




GOVERNMENT FY


PRICE/DPPH

LABOR CATEGORY
           02   03   04   05   06   07
    CONTRACTOR SITE
 GOVERNMENT SITE

Engineer I

Engineer Il 

Engineer III 

Engineer IV 

Engineer V 

Engineer VI 

Engineer VII 

Engineer VIII 

Analyst I

Analyst II

Analyst III

Analyst IV

Analyst V

Analyst VI

Analyst VII

Analyst VIII

Production Engineer I

Production Engineer II

Production Engineer III

Production Engineer IV

Production Engineer V

Production Engineer VI

Production Engineer VII

Production Engineer VIII

Programmer I

Programmer II

Programmer III

Programmer IV

Senior Principal Investigator I

Senior Principal Investigator II

Senior Principal Investigator III

Senior Management/Technical Staff I

Senior Management/Technical Staff II 

Senior Management/Technical Staff III

Senior Management/Technical Staff IV

Technician I

Technician II

Technician III

Technician IV

Clerk I










NA

Clerk II 










NA

Clerk III










NA

Typist/Secretary I









NA

Typist/Secretary II








NA

Typist/Secretary III








NA

Typist/Secretary IV








NA

Illustrator/Graphics/Tech Writer I







NA

Illustrator/Graphics/Tech Writer II







NA

Illustrator/Graphics/Tech Writer III 






NA

Illustrator/Graphics/Tech Writer IV






NA
    b.  For employees permanently stationed in the high-cost area(s) below, the fixed-prices above shall be increased by the percentages shown below (as deemed necessary by the Contracting Officer, other sites may be added during contract performance):


Washington DC

15%

    c.  The following NTEs are applicable during the contract period of performance:

CLIN 0003 Consultants


NTE  $33,650,000 

CLIN 0004  Material


NTE  $  9,200,000

CLIN 0005  Travel


NTE  $25,500,000

CLIN 0006 Mentor-Protégé Program
NTE  $ 5,000,000

 Changes in Section C (shown in BOLD below) 

4.1.5  The contractor shall perform in accordance with the National Industrial Security Program Operating Manual (NISPOM) (DoD 5220.22M) and ensure that all classified material is handled in accordance with the latest appropriate security classification specifications.

Changes in Section L (shown in BOLD below)

 SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS FOR PREPARATION OF PROPOSALS:PRIVATE 
    a.
SUBMISSION OF PROPOSALS:  In addition to copies required in paragraph below entitled “General”, your response to this solicitation shall be submitted as follows:PRIVATE 
    One (1) copy of the price and management/technical proposals and one (1) copy of SF 33 and Section K, Representations, Certifications, and Other Statements of Offerors, to your cognizant ACO, whose name, address and telephone number the offeror shall provide below:

ACO:
                                                                        
 

    b.  INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE COMPLETION OF SOLICITATION PART I ‑ THE SCHEDULE:  The offeror shall complete the blank spaces in the following solicitation Schedule sections hereof: 

    (1)  SF 33:  Complete Items 12 through 18 as applicable.

    (2)  Utilizing the fixed-prices per labor category in your proposal, calculate the total price for CLINS 0001 – 0008 (cumulative) AS IF the total number of Direct Productive Person Hours (DPPHs) were spread equally across each of the labor categories (for the partial government fiscal years (GFY), allocate 5 months of DPPHs to FY02 and 7 months to FY07).  (NOTE:  For this exercise, assume that all labor is performed at the contractor site).  

    (3)  To calculate:

(a) To obtain the yearly allotment of DPPHs, evenly spread the total number of hours across the five-year period of performance (10,615,756 divided by 5); 

(b) Divide the yearly allotment of DPPHs by the total number of government labor categories (GLC) to determine the breakout of DPPHs per GLC/per year;



(c)  Multiply the DPPHs per GLC/per year by the appropriate proposed fixed prices and total those amounts as described in b. (2) above.

    (4)  Provide the calculation of the “estimated dollar value” on a separate sheet of paper directly behind the SF33.
    c.  GENERAL:

(1)  These instructions provide guidance to the offeror in preparing the proposal and describe the approach for development and presentation of the proposed data in response to this solicitation.


(2)  The proposal must comply fully with these instructions.  FAILURE TO DO SO MAY BE CAUSE FOR REJECTION.  The proposal shall include all of the information requested in these instructions.  Alternate management/technical proposals are not allowed and will not be considered or evaluated by the Government.


(3)  Portions of the offeror's proposal will be presented orally.  The oral presentations, both the pre-recorded portion and the live portion, shall be conducted by the Program Manager and other key personnel.  The live presentations will be videotaped by the Government. 


(4)  Briefing charts utilized during the oral proposals shall be prepared using a font equivalent to Times New Roman 24 font or larger (on word charts) and not less than Times New Roman 16 font (on "graphics" charts, e.g., flow charts, matrices, and diagrams).  (See Attachment 1 for sample of required font sizes.)  Written portions of the proposal shall be prepared using a font equivalent to Times New Roman 10 font or larger and margins of not less than one inch (1”) on both sides and top and bottom of pages.


(5)  The offeror should clearly state in his proposal how he intends to accomplish this contract.  Mere acknowledgment or restatement of a requirement or task is not acceptable.  Relevance to the effort listed herein is critical.


(6)  The information in the proposal should be presented in a clear, coherent and concise manner.  The presentation shall be limited to the information that is necessary to convey a point and should not be overly elaborate.  (See “Oral Presentation Slides” below.)


(7)  We anticipate the receipt of unclassified proposals; however, if the offeror believes classified data is necessary to present a contractor's past performance and/or approach, a written request must be presented to the Contracting Officer BEFORE such submission.  If approved by the Contracting Officer, a separate written classified annex may be included in the proposal.  This annex may not exceed the classification of SECRET, and must be delivered appropriately.  NOTE:  All oral proposals shall be strictly in unclassified terms.


(8)  
In proposal Volume V, as well as TABs A, F, G, and H of Volume II, a single cross-reference table to the statement of work (SOW) is required, but is not included in the stated page limitations.  Offerors shall propose the entire SOW.  Title pages, table of contents, list of figures, list of tables, acronyms, and bibliographies are not included in the stated page limitations for the proposal volumes.  Proposals shall not contain special access program (SAP), WINTEL, or intelligence information.  The proposal volumes will be submitted as follows:

	VOLUME
	TITLE
	PAGE LIMITATIONS
	NUMBER OF HARD

COPIES
	NUMBER OF COMPUTER DISKS

	I
	GENERAL
	See d. Below
	1
	2

	II
	MANAGEMENT/TECHNICAL
	See d. Below
	1 *
	**

	III
	INNOVATIVE BUSINESS PRACTICES
	See d. Below
	1
	2

	IV
	PRICE
	See d. Below
	1
	2

	V
	SAMPLE TASK ORDERS
	See d. Below
	*
	2

	* 
	One (1) copy of briefing charts shall be included in the bound volume(s) of written proposal under the appropriate TABS.  Also provide an additional 10 B&W copies of the briefing charts in a separate box.
	  
	 
	

	** 
	Two (2) copies of computer disks that have narrative of the total proposal, plus five (5) copies of the pre-recorded presentation, whether video, CD, or a combination of video and CD, shall be provided.  Include the five (5) copies of the pre-recorded presentation in the box with the 10 B&W copies of the briefing charts; include the computer disks in the box with the bound volume(s) of the proposal.
	  
	 
	



(9)  DELIVERY INSTRUCTIONS:  All electronic data must be Microsoft Office 97 or 2000, virus free, on 3.5 (1.44 Mb) floppy disk, 100 MB Iomega Zip disk , and/or on Compact Disk (CD).  Offerors shall submit two copies of the proposal disk(s), video, and/or Compact Disk.  Each of the five (5) volumes shall be saved in a separate file on the proposal disk(s); each TAB shall also be saved in a separate file.  The narrative portions shall be in Microsoft Word (MS Office 97/2000 for Windows); the price data shall be in Microsoft Excel  (MS Office 97/2000 for Windows); any graphics shall be in Microsoft Power Point  (MS Office 97/2000 for Windows) or other industry-standard format.  All of the disks and/or CDs shall be submitted in a non-compressed, PC format.  If files contain links, the links must be intact and maintained through all revisions.   If such are permitted by the Contracting Officer, documents marked SECRET shall be handled in accordance with DoD 5220.22M and shall be in separate envelopes.

    d.  VOLUME DESCRIPTIONS:


(1)
VOLUME I - GENERAL:  The general volume will consist of the actual offer (prepared in accordance with "INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE COMPLETION OF SOLICITATION PART I - THE SCHEDULE”, as set forth above) to enter into a contract to perform the desired work.  It will include a Table of Contents for the overall proposal; an Executive Summary of the overall proposal; Section K, Representations, Certifications, and Other Statements of Offerors, as well as all other RFP sections requiring “fill-in” completion by the offeror; Amendment(s) Acknowledgement(s); identification of technical data and computer software which the contractor intends to provide with limited rights or restricted rights; any/all exceptions, both prime and subcontractor, to the terms and conditions of the RFP; any deviations thereto; and an acronym listing.  The executive summary will provide an overview of the offeror's organization and general approach to support the solicitation requirements.  Pertinent aspects of the proposed approach including teaming approaches, if any, subcontracting, and relevant corporate experience and expertise on similar programs should be identified.  Particular proposal advantages or unique approaches should also be highlighted.  Price information shall not be included in this document.  (LIMIT 5 PAGES OF OFFEROR-CREATED DOCUMENTATION; PAGE LIMITATION EXCLUDES TITLE PAGES, TABLE OF CONTENTS, LIST OF FIGURES, LIST OF TABLES, ACRONYMS, REPS AND CERTS, OTHER FILL-IN PORTIONS OF RFP, AND COPIES OF CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGMENTS OF RFP AMENDMENTS)

(2)  VOLUME II – MANAGEMENT/TECHNICAL PROPOSAL:  


(a)  The management/technical volume shall be separated by tabs as shown below.  The management/technical proposal shall contain a description of the contractor's approach to complete all the requirements of the SOW.  Proposals containing statements of compliance only (e.g., "will comply") will not be acceptable.  The management/technical proposal shall contain a qualification of management and technical performance parameters and sufficient rationale to allow an evaluation of approaches.  The management/technical proposal shall include a description of proposed resources, facilities, equipment, and services (to include government-furnished facilities, equipment and services) to be used in accomplishing the requirements of the SOW.  (NOTE:  See section H clause entitled, MATERIALS AND SPECIAL TEST EQUIPMENT (STE) AND SECTION L PROVISION ENTITLED, MATERIALS AND CONTRACTOR FACILITIZATION.)


(b)  The management/technical volume shall contain a comprehensive description of the proposed SETAC management structure and approach for ensuring a successful management of this multi-task, complex program.  The offeror shall describe the organizational structure to include team members and major subcontractors and how the SETAC management structure fits into the overall corporate structure.  The reporting and review relationship with corporate management and commitment for maintaining core resources shall be explained.  In describing the program organization, the offeror shall include:  (i) The responsibilities, lines of authority, and span of control; (ii) the relationship among the prime contractor (including its team members) and subcontractors and the process for assigning SOW; (iii) the flow of information among the offeror's organization/team; and (iv) the interface and communication among the contractor team, requiring activities, and external organizations.  The offeror shall also describe the process for managing and controlling team members and/or subcontractors to include the reporting and review requirements imposed and the process for timely incorporation of team member and subcontractor financial information into the prime's data.  The offeror shall fully describe the management control system established for effective planning and control of resources to include the process for:  scheduling, budgeting, and accumulating cost; identifying cost and schedule problems; and providing timely detailed performance status to management and the Government.  The process for accounting and collecting costs for separate sources of funds and tasks shall be explained.  (See Section L provision entitled, FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION)


(c)  The following “topics” should be included in each pre-recorded presentation.  The topics presented herein are not in any order of importance or presentation order.  The management/technical proposal need not have clear division between “management” and “technical” areas as long as the offeror addresses all issues required.  Format and presentation content is left to the discretion of each offeror.   

·   Team Concept/Philosophy Relative to SETAC Program

· Approach to SETAC Program Management

·   Management

· Introduction of Team and proposed role of each in execution of this effort

· Management Organization and Framework

· Lines of authority and communication

· Linkage to SMDC’s Army Performance Improvement Criteria (APIC) management framework (NOTE:  This bullet does not replace the requirement for TAB C under Volume III) (APIC information/data can be found at the U.S. Army website:  http://www.hqda.army.mil/leadingchange/APIC/APIC 2001/index.htm)
· Qualifications of Management Team

· Capability and experience related to executing tasks of multiple/diverse organizations

· Capability and experience related to SOW requirements

·   Technical

· Introduction of Team and proposed role of each in execution of this effort

· Technical Organization and Framework

· Lines of authority and communication

· Relationship/linkage to proposed management framework

· Qualifications of Technical Team

· Capability and experience related to executing tasks of multiple/diverse organizations

· Capability and experience related to SOW requirements

·   Resources

· Facilities

· Types

· Locations

· Security Clearance at each location

· Approximate percentage of prime contractor personnel located in each location

· Technologies and tools available

· Personnel

· Hiring philosophy

· Employee retention philosophy

· Prevention of complacency/stagnation

· Allocation

· Security Clearances

· Past performance (the most recent and most pertinent contract performance which demonstrates your ability to execute this effort)

(d)  Oral Presentation Slides (Pre-recorded Portion) – (TAB A):  The management/technical proposal shall be pre-recorded by the offeror team.  This pre-recorded videotape, CD, or videotape/CD combination shall not be overly elaborate and shall only consist of the presenter(s) and the briefing charts which are submitted as part of the proposal.  The presentation must be conducted by the offeror’s proposed Program Manager and other key personnel (as determined by the offeror).  Color may be utilized in the charts as long as it does not detract from the message or become unreadable when made into B&W copies.  Special effects, such as animation, sound, and the like, are expressly forbidden and may be cause for determining the proposal non-responsive.  The total running time of the pre-recorded presentation shall not exceed 3 hours.  The pre-recorded video and/or CD shall remain the property of the U.S. Government and will be appropriately marked and safeguarded in accordance with Source Selection procedures.  (LIMIT 100 SLIDES)


(e)  Transition-in Plan -  (TAB B):  All offerors shall submit a transition-in plan covering estimated date of award (1 Jan 02) through 23 Apr 02. This plan should detail how the offeror will prepare his company to become fully responsible for all SETAC functions on 24 Apr 02.  This plan shall not include cost data.  As a part of the plan, the offeror must address program transition (date of award, 1 Jan 02, to date issued, 24 Apr 02) from the present SETAC contractor to allow for continuity of program support and interface with other program contractors.  The transition plan shall include a management plan, schedules, and milestones, and shall identify any technical or management issues requiring resolution.  The transition plan shall be developed to have minimal schedule/technical support impact.  (LIMIT 7 PAGES) 

(f)  SETAC Team Organization  – (TAB C):  This section shall address the various elements of the organization of the team proposed to perform the SETAC efforts.  Whether a traditional prime-sub relationship; a formal teaming arrangement, or a joint venture, the proposed offeror team shall address the risks associated with such a structure and its proposed mitigation strategies to maintain the risk within an acceptable margin to ensure successful contract performance.  (FOR SPECIFIC PAGE LIMITATIONS UNDER THIS TAB, SEE BELOW) 

· (TAB C1) – Under this tab, include the master subcontracting plan.  (NOTE:  If not required due to business size, include such a statement under this tab.)  (As this requirement is a previously-developed and approved document, this tab is NOT restricted as to number of pages.)     

· (TAB C2) – Under this tab, include the offeror’s SETAC-specific subcontracting plan.  With regard to FAR 52.219-9(d)(1) and (2), the subcontracting goals should be no less than 20% of the total contract value (5% for small disadvantaged business (including Historically Black Colleges or Universities/Minority Institutions); 3% for women-owned small business; 1% for Veteran-owned small business (including service-disabled veteran small business); 1% for HUBZone small business; and 10% for other small business).  Minimum content requirements for the plan are addressed in FAR 52.219-9.  (LIMIT 20 PAGES)

· (TAB C3) – Under this tab, describe teaming methodology (i.e., traditional prime-sub relationship; a formal teaming arrangement, or a joint venture), the associated risks with this methodology, and the proposed mitigation plan to address these risks.  (LIMIT 5 PAGES)

· (TAB C4) – Under this tab, address the formal teaming arrangements put into place for the purposes of proposing on the SETAC acquisition.  See Attachments 2 and 3 for Teaming Agreement Checklists.  All offerors shall address this issue, whether proposing on the HUBZone set aside, the 8(a) set aside, the small business set asides, or the full and open awards.  For the full and open offerors, discuss the proposed organization of the SETAC Team anticipated for performance of the resultant contract.  For those proposing under the current Affiliation Rules in order for the “team” to qualify as a single entity relative to the Limitation on Subcontracting clause, include a copy of the signed Teaming Agreement with all of the team members.  If proposing under the 8(a) set-aside portion of this acquisition or the HUBZone set-aside portion when the lead contractor is an 8(a) firm, include a copy of the signed Teaming Agreement approved by the Small Business Administration (SBA) (i.e., for Alabama corporations, Ms. Donna Glenn in the Birmingham Office is the appropriate point of contact for this action).  (LIMIT 30 PAGES)
(g)  Procurement Integrity Issues – (TAB D):  The offeror shall address, as applicable, employment issues relative to procurement integrity and laws governing former Government Employees (see DoD Directive 5500.7, Joint Ethics Regulation).  (LIMIT 5 PAGES)


(h)  Organizational Conflict of Interest (OCI) Risk Mitigation Plan – (TAB E):  All offerors shall submit a detailed plan that addresses how, during performance of the resultant contract, the offeror team will avoid conflicts of interest anticipated by Section H, ORGANIZATIONAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST CLAUSE, as well as those described in Section H, ORGANIZATIONAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST REGARDING PREVIOUSLY-SUPPLIED PRODUCTS.  This section shall include a copy of all SETAC Contracting Officer letters clearing and/or limiting the participation (of the prime contractor or any proposed team member) in this acquisition; copies of the letters are not included in the page count.  (LIMIT 10 PAGES)


(i)  Key Personnel Listing and Program Manager’s Resume – (TAB F):  The offeror shall submit a listing of proposed key personnel for the SETAC effort; this listing will be subject to negotiation prior to making a final determination for inclusion in any resultant contract.  The resume shall include the proposed PM's background experience, especially addressing experience pertinent to this particular effort, cross referenced to the SOW section.  The resume will be submitted in the following required format (LIMIT 5 PAGES FOR RESUME AND 2 PAGES FOR THE KEY PERSONNEL LISTING):  

· NAME:                   

· SECURITY CLEARANCE AND DATE GRANTED:

· EDUCATION:

·   Colleges attended, major, dates of attendance, and degree attained and/or hours completed.

·   Special Training:

· EXPERIENCE:  In reverse chronological order, list the inclusive dates, employer, and a brief description of the task performed and job title.

· RELATED EXPERIENCE:  Specify the experience that meets or exceeds the minimum qualifications necessary to perform as perform as a Program Manager.  Include the relevant data/information that establishes “why” this person is the best choice for SETAC PM.

· THE MOST SIGNIFICANT MANAGERIAL ACCOMPLISHMENT IN THE LAST FIVE YEARS RELATED TO THIS EFFORT:

· THE MOST SIGNIFICANT TECHNICAL ACCOMPLISHMENT IN THE LAST FIVE YEARS RELATED TO THIS EFFORT:

· THE MOST SALIENT SKILL THAT RELATES TO THE PROPOSED EFFORT:

· PLANNED PERCENTAGE OF TIME TO THIS EFFORT:


(j)  Total Compensation Plan for SETAC Employees – (TAB G):  All offerors shall submit a detailed plan which covers corporate philosophy in the areas of direct labor rates, fringe benefits, etc. provided to the employees under the resultant contracts.  The Plan should demonstrate the offeror’s capability to obtain and sustain the personnel resources required to implement the offeror’s proposed management/technical approach.  (LIMIT 3 PAGES PER PROPOSED TEAM MEMBER/MAJOR SUBCONTRACTOR)  

(k)  Past Performance Information and Spreadsheet – (TAB H):  The offeror shall provide a list of seven (7) contracts and/or major subcontracts which are similar in management/technical nature and complexity to this acquisition.  These contracts must be either on-going or completed within the past two years.  If proposing as a formal team or Joint Venture (JV), these contracts may be spread among the key team members/JV partners, however, at least two (2) must have been performed by the prime/lead contractor.  Contracts listed may include those entered into with the Federal Government, agencies of state and local governments, and commercial customers.  This information shall be submitted on an Excel spreadsheet with the following information:  Contract Number; Task Order Number, if applicable; Government Points of Contact (Technical, Management, and Contractual), including name, address, telephone number, and email address; the title of the effort, the contract value; and the period of performance.  No other verbiage/narrative is allowed.  The Past Performance Evaluation Form/Letter is located at Attachment 4.  The offeror shall complete Section 1 of the Form for each contractual vehicle addressed in the Excel spreadsheet discussed above.  After the offeror has completed Section 1, the entire Past Performance Evaluation Form/Letter shall be mailed or emailed to the Government POCs listed in the Excel spreadsheet submitted as part of the proposal.  Each offeror will be evaluated on his/her performance under existing and prior contracts for similar services.  Performance information will be used for both responsibility determinations and as an evaluation factor to assure best value to the Government.  See Section M, a. I (c) and b. I for discussion of the evaluation of past performance information.   (LIMIT 2 PAGES FOR SPREADSHEET)

(l)  Billets for SCI Personnel – (TAB I):  All offerors shall submit an estimated number of SCI billets necessary to perform the SETAC effort.  This TAB shall also include a listing of the proposed personnel for these billets and a justification for each in accordance with page 9 of the attached DD254, dated 15 Aug 01 (Exhibit III).   (LIMIT 10 PAGES)  


(3)  VOLUME III – INNOVATIVE BUSINESS PRACTICES PROPOSAL:  


(a)  Effective Pass Through Factor for SETAC – (TAB A):  Historically, the dollars/hours maintained by the prime contractor for managing the various SETAC efforts has been a serious detractor for some potential users.  While the Government recognizes the necessity for prime contractor participation in the execution and management of all task orders issued under the SETACs, the necessity for double-digit effective pass through costs is questionable.  For the purpose of this proposal and resultant contract performance, “effective pass through” refers to all direct funding, DPPHs utilized by the prime for management of the task, and all other direct and indirect costs which are neither utilized by the prime directly in the performance of the technical effort nor passed to the subcontractor(s) for the management and direct performance of the technical effort.  In this section, the offeror shall address how he plans to control the cost(s) associated with managing this contractual effort.  He shall also address any specific risks associated with this proposed methodology and how such will be mitigated.  The offeror shall include the specifics of what elements/factors make up his “effective pass through” amount.  Further, the offeror shall provide a specific percentage(s) of effective pass through for task orders issued under the resultant contract.   (LIMIT 7 PAGES)


(b)
General Business Innovation – (TAB B):  The offeror shall describe the offeror's business process practices improvements that contribute to the enhanced efficiency of contract performance.  Supporting information must include verifiable evidence of cost reductions and how they were achieved.  Accomplishments described must clearly be related to and demonstrate cost control and operational efficiency.  Elimination of company personnel will not be considered unless business processes and procedures were streamlined at the same time.  Cost avoidance and value engineering efforts will not be considered under this factor.  (LIMIT 5 PAGES)


(c)  Quality Management System for SETAC – (TAB C):  The US Army Space and Missile Defense Command is in the process of implementing the Army Performance Improvement Criteria (APIC) as its management framework.  (APIC is similar to the Malcolm Baldrige Award criteria management framework/system used by many commercial companies.)  The offeror’s management framework plan should briefly describe the manner in which the offeror’s management system will align with the SMDC’s APIC management framework, where applicable.  The offeror should also briefly describe its own management framework, to include a discussion of leadership, strategic planning, customer focus, information and analysis, human resource focus, process management, and results. Finally, the offeror shall address specific metrics to be utilized during SETAC performance to measure performance and, ultimately, improvement.  (LIMIT 15 PAGES)

(4)  VOLUME IV – PRICE PROPOSAL:  FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH RFP REQUIREMENTS FOR PRICING INFORMATION MAY RESULT IN AN ADVERSE ASSESSMENT OF YOUR PROPOSAL AND REDUCE OR ELIMINATE YOUR CHANCE OF BEING SELECTED FOR AWARD.  WHEN AN OFFEROR FAILS TO FURNISH PRICE INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE RFP, THE GOVERNMENT MAY UTILIZE COMPARABLE COST INFORMATION FROM OTHER SOURCES FOR PURPOSES OF COMPLETING ITS EVALUTION.  UNDER THESE CIRCUMSTANCES, THE OFFEROR BEARS FULL RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY ADVERSE EVALUATION IMPACT WHICH MAY RESULT FROM HIS FAILURE TO FURNISH THE INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE RFP.  


(a)
In the front of the price proposal, provide the following subcontractor information:

· List of subcontractors and addresses

· Anticipated percentage of total SETAC effort allocated to each subcontractor

· Anticipated start date, if other than 24 Apr 02
(b)  Price Schedule – (TAB A):  Insert the total loaded price per Direct Productive Person Hour (DPPH) for each given government labor category identified in Section B clause entitled, GOVERNMENT LABOR CATEGORIES AND ASSOCIATED FIXED PRICES PER DPPH.  You must include all labor categories and all applicable Government fiscal years for both government-site and contractor-sites.

(c)  Price Development Process – (TAB B):  The offeror shall provide a brief description of how the price proposal was developed/prepared.  This portion of the price proposal shall include a basic description of the basis of the proposal, including the prime contractor indirect rates utilized to develop the fixed prices/DPPH; the percentage of profit included in each of the fixed prices/DPPH; how the subcontractors are paid profit (i.e., whether it is part of a shared profit pool or if the prime is adding profit onto the subcontractor’s already-profit-bearing prices); and any other details which provide insight into the proposal methodology.  If any of these elements/factors differ between labor categories or fiscal years, provide details and thorough explanation.  (LIMIT 5 PAGES)

(d)  Task Order Examples Using Proposed “Effective Pass Through” Methodology – (TAB C):  Utilizing the methodology proposed relative to effective pass through factors, the offeror shall develop a plan clearly delineating the amount of funding going to the prime and the subcontractor(s), respectively, in each of the following situations (assume no travel, materials, or consultants for this exercise).  The plan must provide a clear breakout between dollars maintained by the prime contractor for the technical effort and the dollars maintained for the program management of the task order.  (LIMIT 8 PAGES):

· $100,000 value task order where 0% technical effort is completed by the prime contractor

· $100,000 value task order where 25% technical effort is completed by the prime contractor

· $100,000 value task order where 50% technical effort is completed by the prime contractor

· $100,000 value task order where 75% technical effort is completed by the prime contractor

· $500,000 value task order where 0% technical effort is completed by the prime contractor

· $500,000 value task order where 25% technical effort is completed by the prime contractor

· $500,000 value task order where 50% technical effort is completed by the prime contractor

· $500,000 value task order where 75% technical effort is completed by the prime contractor

· $2M value task order where 0% technical effort is completed by the prime contractor

· $2M value task order where 25% technical effort is completed by the prime contractor

· $2M value task order where 50% technical effort is completed by the prime contractor

· $2M value task order where 75% technical effort is completed by the prime contractor

· $10M value task order where 0% technical effort is completed by the prime contractor

· $10M value task order where 25% technical effort is completed by the prime contractor

· $10M value task order where 50% technical effort is completed by the prime contractor

· $10M value task order where 75% technical effort is completed by the prime contractor


(e)  The Price Proposal Volume may assume that the reader is familiar with the other Volumes of the proposal.  The offeror shall ensure the information presented in this volume is adequate for evaluation and consistent with the information contained in the other proposal volumes.  Adequate information means that level of information at which tasks and resources to accomplish the task can be logically identified and evaluated by an engineering or management specialist.


(f)  The price proposal shall be completely detailed and itemized, in accordance with the provision of this section entitled “Instructions for Submission of a Contract Pricing Proposal When Other Than Cost or Pricing Data Are Required”, so as to permit adequate and appropriate analysis thereof and to provide traceability to the other proposal Volumes, as necessary.  The proposal shall be in full consonance with the offeror's system of bookkeeping and cost management.


(g)
The price proposal shall not contain any classified information.


(h)  Other Pertinent Pricing Information/Data – (TAB D):  All other pertinent pricing information/data shall be included under this tab.

· (TAB D1) – Under this tab, include the following data for the prime and subcontractors, as applicable:
·   Pre-Award Disclosure Statement - Cost Accounting Practices and Certifications was executed on                           .  The cognizant DCAA auditor determined the Disclosure Statement was current, accurate, and complete on ___________.  The cognizant ACO has determined the Disclosure Statement accurately describes the contractor's accounting system on ___________.

·   The offeror provided the ACO with an Estimating System Disclosure Statement on ________.  The ACO determined the offeror's Estimating System was adequate on _______________.

·   The offeror has an approved purchasing system as determined by the ACO on ____________.The offeror has a material requirements planning system that was approved by the ACO on ______________.

· (TAB D2) – If the contractor proposes to utilize any currently-available government-furnished property from other Federal Government contracts in the conduct of this contract, he shall identify all items requested to be provided as government-furnished property, service or material (GFP/S/M).  Written verification of availability from the Government Contracting Officer responsible for the proposed GFP/S/M shall be included in this section of the proposal; adequacy of the property shall be determined by the offeror.    

· (TAB D3) – Under this tab, the offeror may include any pricing or price-related data that further explains or justifies the price proposal. This tab shall not include information/data provided elsewhere in this proposal.  (LIMIT 5 PAGES)


(5)  VOLUME V – SAMPLE TASK ORDER (T/O) PROPOSAL
(a)  The offerors should expect to receive four (4) sample task orders.  The offeror shall provide sufficient details to clearly demonstrate his approach and understanding of the sample task orders.  The contractor shall present his management approach; technical methodology; labor mix, materials, and travel, including associated costs; and graphical representation of the timeline for completion of the sample task order.  The proposed labor mix, materials, and travel should be addressed in sufficient detail to allow the evaluator to thoroughly understand the offeror’s approach, as well as to allow a determination of cost realism as it relates to the performance of the task order.  Included in the presentation should be risks, risk mitigation, impacts and implications caused by external organizations, funding issues (to include type and/or source of funds), impacts on contractor resources, etc..  These sample tasks afford the offeror the opportunity to demonstrate their ability to perform the types of tasks that may be required during contract performance and demonstrate the capabilities and expertise of their proposed personnel.  This is also the offeror’s opportunity to demonstrate management approaches to work flow, OCI considerations, personnel staffing, quality control, etc..  There may be many ways in which the sample task orders could be approached/performed, however a structured, comprehensive task order management plan is necessary to meet the requirements of this section.   

(b)  The offeror’s responses to the sample task orders will be briefed live at the USASMDC complex (or other alternate site (based on availability).  Attendees will be limited to those personnel essential for an effective presentation.  The presentation must be conducted by the offeror’s proposed Program Manager and other key personnel (as determined by the offeror).  Color may be utilized in the charts as long as it does not detract from the message or become unreadable when made into B&W copies.  Special effects, such as animation, sound, and the like, are expressly forbidden and may be cause for determining the proposal non-responsive.  The total time allocated for this presentation shall not exceed 2 hours.  The Government will provide a computer and projector at the presentation site; the computer will support Microsoft Office 97 or 2000 for Windows (Word, Excel, and Power Point).  The Government will videotape these presentations.  The resultant video(s) shall remain the property of the U.S. Government and will be appropriately marked and safeguarded in accordance with Source Selection procedures.  (LIMIT 60 SLIDES, INCLUDING TITLE SLIDES)

Changes in Sample Task Order Requirements Packages (shown in BOLD below)

Sample T/ORPs # 1, 2, 3, and 4 are amended to revise the 10-slide per T/ORP limitations.  Sample T/ORPs # 1, 2, 3, and 4 are limited to a total of 60 slides.  The offerors will be permitted to determine the specific number of slides necessary to respond to each individual T/ORP within this overall limitation.  The RESPONSES DUE/SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS portion of the four T/ORPs are revised to read as follows:


“A hardcopy of slides is due to the Contracting Officer on 31 Oct 01; the oral presentation date will be determined by random drawing.  While the specific number of briefing slides for an individual T/ORP is not mandated, the total number for all four T/ORPs shall not exceed 60 slides, including title slides.”

